
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING#325 

 
November 5, 2020 

10:00 a.m. 
 

VIA CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER: 1-646-741-5293 
PARTICIPANT CODE: 111 216 6879 

 
 



 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING and AGENDA 
November 5, 2020 – 10:00 a.m. 

PLEASE NOTE: Given the unprecedented circumstances resulting from the global 
Coronavirus pandemic, Governor Charles Baker issued an order to provide limited relief from 
certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law to protect the health and safety of individuals 
interested in attending public meetings. In keeping with the guidance provided, the 
Commission will conduct a public meeting utilizing remote collaboration technology. If there 
is any technical problem with our remote connection, an alternative conference line will be 
noticed immediately on our website: MassGaming.com. 

 
Pursuant to the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25, notice is hereby 
given of a meeting of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission. The meeting will take place: 
 
 

Thursday, November 5, 2020 
10:00 a.m.  

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
VIA CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER: 1-646-741-5293 

PARTICIPANT CODE:  111 216 6879 

All documents and presentations related to this agenda will be available for your review on the 
morning of November 5, 2020 by clicking here. 
 
 
PUBLIC MEETING - #325 

1. Call to order         
 

2. Approval of Minutes 
a. August 13, 2020       

            
3. Administrative Update – Karen Wells, Executive Director 

a. Job Listing Update 
b. Racing Overview – Dr. Alex Lightbown, Director of Racing 

 
4. COVID-19 Developments and Related Minimum Standards, Protocols, and Plans 

a. On-site Casino Updates – Loretta Lillios, Interim Director IEB/Chief 
Enforcement Counsel/Bruce Band, Assistant Director, Gaming Agents Division 
Chief 

https://massgaming.com/news-events/article/mgc-open-meeting-November-5-2020-2/


 

 

 

b. Update regarding COVID-19 Order No. 53 – Karen Wells, Executive Director; 
Loretta Lillios, Interim Director IEB/Chief Enforcement Counsel 
(i) Review and Discussion Regarding Minimum Requirements for the Initial 

Phase 3 Opening of Gaming Establishments (the “Gaming Guidelines”)      
VOTE          

(ii) Review and Discussion Regarding Protocols for Conduct of Live Racing 
Under COVID-19 (the “Horse Racing Guidelines”)                  VOTE 

(iii) Review and Discussion Regarding Plans for Reopening of Simulcast 
Facilities (PPC; Raynham; Suffolk Downs) (the “Simulcast Guidelines”) 
VOTE 

 
5. Licensing Division – Derek Lennon, Chief Financial and Accounting Officer; Loretta Lillios, 

Interim Director IEB/Chief Enforcement Counsel 
a. MGM Springfield Gaming Beverage License Amendment Request – addition of 

new licensed area (“smart bar service bar”) – Loretta Lillios, Interim Director 
IEB/Chief Enforcement Counsel; Daniel Miller, MGM Director of Compliance; 
Abdallah Berry, MGM Vice President of Hospitality                               VOTE 

b. Gaming Service Employee Exemption Requests - Derek Lennon, Chief Financial 
and Accounting Officer                                                                              VOTE                                        
 

6. Investigations and Enforcement Bureau – Loretta Lillios, Interim Director IEB/Chief 
Enforcement Counsel 

a. Two Plainridge Park Casino Suitability Individual Qualifiers – Katherine 
Hartigan, Senior Enforcement Counsel                                                      VOTE 

b. Five Encore Boston Harbor Suitability Entity Qualifiers – Katherine Hartigan, 
Senior Enforcement Counsel                                                                      VOTE                             
 

7. Community Affairs Division – Joseph Delaney, Community Affairs Division Chief 
a. Community Mitigation Fund – Foxborough/Plainville/Wrentham Grant 

Amendment; Joe Delaney; Mary Thurlow, Program Manager                  VOTE                                                                             
 

8. Racing Division – Dr. Alex Lightbown, Director of Racing  
a. 2021 Racing Application              VOTE 

 
9. MGC Administration – Karen Wells, Executive Director 

a. Internal Compliance and Audit Discussion 

10. Legal Division – Todd Grossman, General Counsel 
a. Licensee Non-disclosure Agreement Discussion 

 
11. Commissioner Updates 
            



 

 

 

12. Other business – reserved for matters the Chair did not reasonably anticipate at the time of 
posting.  

 
I certify that on this date, this Notice was posted as “Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Meeting” at www.massgaming.com and emailed to:  regs@sec.state.ma.us, 
melissa.andrade@state.ma.us. 

      
 
November 3, 2020      , Chair 

 
Date Posted to Website:  November 3, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 

http://www.massgaming.com/
mailto:regs@sec.state.ma.us


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 1 of 6 
 

  
 

Date/Time: August 13, 2020 – 10:00 a.m. 

Place:  Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
VIA CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER: 1-646-741-5292 
MEETING ID: 112 408 7438 
 

Present:  Chair Cathy Judd-Stein  
 Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 Commissioner Bruce Stebbins  
 Commissioner Eileen O’Brien 
 
Absent:  Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
10:00 a.m. Chair Cathy Judd-Stein called to order public meeting #315 of the Massachusetts 

Gaming Commission (Commission).   
 
 The Chair confirmed a quorum for the meeting with a Roll Call. 
 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 
 Commissioner Zuniga: Aye. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Aye. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye.  
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
10:01 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved to approve the minutes from the Commission 

meeting of June 23, 2020, subject to correction for typographical errors and other 
nonmaterial matters. Commissioner Zuniga seconded the motion.    
Roll Call Vote: 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

Given the unprecedented circumstances, Governor Charles Baker issued an order to provide 
limited relief from certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law to protect the health and safety of 
the public and individuals interested in attending public meetings during the global Coronavirus 
pandemic. In keeping with the guidance provided, the Commission conducted this public meeting 

utilizing remote collaboration technology. 
 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=61


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 
 Commissioner Zuniga:  Aye. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Aye. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye. 
 The motion passed 4-0. 
 
Administrative Update 
 
10:02 a.m. General Casino Reopening Update 
 Investigations and Enforcement Bureau (IEB) Chief Enforcement 

Counsel/Deputy Director Loretta Lillios is filling in for Interim Executive 
Director Karen Wells for this item today.  Joining her is IEB Assistant 
Director/Gaming Agents Division Chief Bruce Band. 

 
 Ms. Lillios provided the Commission with a general update on current casino 

operations.  She stated that the casinos are in their fifth week of operations after 
the re-openings, and things are consistently going well.  Each licensee is adhering 
to their plan regarding mask requirements, beverage handling, and there are no 
new reports with any adverse trends.  Occupancy levels that have been set by the 
Commission are working well.   

 
10:05 a.m. Mr. Band confirmed for Commissioner Stebbins that occupancy levels are well 

below the Commission’s set standards, as they are just over half (50% of the 
Commissions’ formula, based on available gaming positions).  Mr. Band stated 
that the occupancy level rises in the evenings and weekends; however, they do not 
reach the maximum limit.  The licensees are continuing to show strong 
compliance with the Commission’s set standards. 

 
10:08 a.m. Craps and Roulette Request 
 MGM Springfield (MGM) and Encore Boston Harbor (Encore) have requested to 

add Craps and Roulette back to their gaming options.  The IEB is currently 
reviewing this request.  Mr. Band stated that in light of the Governor’s 
announcements regarding reported statewide trending COVID-19 case numbers, 
the IEB feels that expansion of operations would not be appropriate at this time.  
The IEB will reconsider when these case numbers subside and is not requesting a 
vote at this time. 

 
 The Chair confirmed that the recommendation is consistent with how the 

Commission has approached the guidelines from the start and will continue to 
monitor the public health metrics.  She added that it would not be prudent to 
expand the gaming options at this juncture.  The Commission reached a consensus 
that IEB will continue to review these requests and can reevaluate at a future date. 

 
 
 
 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=129
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=311
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=475


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 3 of 6 
 

10:13 a.m. Poker Status 
Next, Mr. Band reported on the status of Poker in the casinos.  He stated that to 
make Poker a safe game, only four people would be allowed at a table, which is 
not profitable.  Consequently, Poker will not be reactivated at this time. 
 

10:15 a.m. Ms. Lillios stated that Encore has instituted retraining for dealers to be able to 
work at other games as well.  70 Poker dealers have taken advantage of this 
training. 

 
10:35 a.m. Legislative Development Update 

Interim General Counsel Todd Grossman updated the Commission on the status 
of HB 4879, An Act Enabling Partnerships for Growth, which would have 
allowed sports wagering, to which the Commission would have regulatory 
authority.  It would also require the Commission to submit a report to the 
legislature on the status of Region C.  This bill passed on July 29, 2020, and was 
sent to the Senate where it was amended to become S.2842 and no longer contains 
language regarding sports wagering or Region C.  No action was taken on sports 
wagering. Still, the Commission will continue to monitor those bills and report on 
the status. 

 
Racing Division 
 
10:20 a.m. Racing Local Aid Payment 
 Financial Analyst Chad Bourque requested the Commission’s approval of the 

Local Aid Quarterly Distribution for Q2 C.Y. 2020 of $169,456.07, payable to 
each city and town where racing activities are conducted. 

 
10:22 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins asked Mr. Bourque if he would provide these 

communities with information based on Q1 and Q2 of 2020 to give a sense of 
what to expect for revenue and assist local officials in their budget forecasting 
efforts.  Mr. Bourque stated that he can provide estimates based on the quarter 
ending in June 2020 and will continue to do so moving forward. 

 
10:24 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission approve the Local Aid 

Quarterly Distribution for Q2 of 2020 in the amount of $169,456.07 pursuant to 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Budget and Appropriation 1050-0140, and 
as described in the memorandum dated August 3, 2020, in the Commissioners' 
Packet.  Commissioner O’Brien seconded the motion. 

 Roll Call Vote: 
 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 
 Commissioner Zuniga:  Aye. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Aye. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye. 
 The motion passed 4-0. 
 
 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=764
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=902
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1008
https://malegislature.gov/Bills/191/H4879
https://malegislature.gov/Bills/191/S2842
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1198
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1266
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1416


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Ombudsman Division 
 
10:25 a.m. Plainridge Park Casino (PPC) Relicensing Schedule 
 Construction Project Oversight Manager Joe Delaney updated the Commission on 

the timeline for the relicensing schedule for PPC. 
 
 A public hearing and meeting has been scheduled for Wednesday, September 16, 

2020, from 3:00–6:00 p.m. The purpose of this hearing/meeting is to provide the 
Commission with input from the host and surrounding communities, impacted 
live entertainment venues (ILEVs), and the general public regarding the PPC 
relicensing.  Because this hearing/meeting will happen remotely, the Commission 
will need communities and the public wishing to speak to notify the Commission 
in advance so they can be invited to speak at the appropriate time. 

 
A Commission meeting has also been tentatively scheduled for September 30, 
2020, at a time to be determined for the Commission to deliberate on the renewal 
of PPC's gaming license. This meeting will follow the format used for the MGM 
and Encore openings whereby MGC staff will present the licensee's compliance 
status in each person's particular area of expertise.  The Commission will vote on 
PPC’s re-licensure at this meeting. 

 
10:29 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins explained that anyone who cannot participate in this 

hearing/meeting can view it after it is posted on the MGC website and submit 
comments to mgccomments@massgaming.gov in time for the public discussion 
and vote on September 30.  The Chair will ask at the end of the meeting if any 
attendees would like to comment.    

 
 Mr. Delaney confirmed for the Chair that if any new information or issues arise at 

the hearing that needs further discussion, the Commission can schedule a 
subsequent Commission meeting to address it. 

 
Legal Division 
 
10:40 a.m. Commission Election of Secretary/Treasurer 
 Mr. Grossman introduced the annual election of the secretary and treasurer.  He 

noted that Commissioner Zuniga currently serves as treasurer, and Commissioner 
Stebbins currently serves as secretary. 

 
 The Chair nominated Commissioner Stebbins and Commissioner Zuniga to 

continue in their roles as secretary and treasurer. 
 
10:43 a.m. Commissioner O’Brien moved that the Commission nominate Commissioner 

Stebbins for election as the secretary of the Commission in accordance with 
chapter 23K, section 3(f).  Commissioner Zuniga seconded the motion. 

 Roll Call Vote: 
 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1475
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=1725
mailto:mgccomments@massgaming.gov
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=2384
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=2579


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 Commissioner Zuniga:  Aye. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Abstained. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye. 
 The motion passed 3-0. 
 
10:51 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission nominate Commissioner 

Zuniga for election as the treasurer of the Commission in accordance with 
chapter 23K, section 3(f).  Commissioner O’Brien seconded the motion. 

 Roll Call Vote: 
 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 
 Commissioner Zuniga:  Abstained. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Aye. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye. 
 The motion passed 3-0. 
  
Commissioners’ Update  
  
10:52 a.m. Preliminary Equity and Inclusion Working Group Update 

Chair Judd-Stein updated the Commission on her convening an Equity and 
Inclusion Working Group in the workplace.  She stated that this group's goal is to 
ensure that the Commission's systems, policies, and practices do not result in a 
disproportionately negative impact on people of color or communities of color.  
She added that the work is critically important and must be ongoing, given the 
agency's broad reach. 

 
The Working Group has already commenced work.  Members of the group are 
Commissioner Zuniga, Interim Executive Director Karen Wells, Director of 
Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Development Jill Griffin, Human Resources 
Manager Trupti Banda, Program Assistant Tania Perez, and Financial Investigator 
Paul Eldredge. 

 
10:54 a.m. Commissioner Zuniga summarized the work of the Equity and Inclusion Group to 

date.  He stated that he will be reporting back to the Commission and the rest of 
the staff regularly.  The group has begun drafting a statement of purpose.   

 
Commissioner Zuniga stated that there is a renewed effort regarding racism 
because of current events and that the Commission remains committed to 
ensuring that there is no discrimination against protected classes.  The group has 
started drafting a statement of purpose, as well as a five-point plan.  They will ask 
for additional help, training, and regulatory review to implement this plan, then 
report back at a public Commission meeting when it is ready. 

 
10:59 a.m. The Chair then noted that Equity and Inclusion Group’s plan will affect the entire 

Commission team.  She added that the work ensures that the Commission reviews 
and conducts its responsibilities with a lens that bears in mind the critical effort to 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3044
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3129
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3252
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3561


  
 
  Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 

Page 6 of 6 
 

ensure practices and policies do not inadvertently affect people of color 
disproportionately.  

 
11:01 a.m. Independent Monitor Update 

Next, the Chair stated that a key member of the team at the Washington, D.C. 
based law firm Miller & Chevalier, Attorney Preston Pugh, has left the company 
to pursue an opportunity with another D.C. law firm.  The Commission is 
currently working on a contract with him to retain him on the monitorship for his 
experience and expertise in employment law.  The Chair has recommended that 
the team at Miller & Chevalier work to establish a contractual arrangement with 
Mr. Pugh. 
 
Mr. Grossman has been working with the General Counsel at Miller & Chevalier 
to ensure compliance with the existing contract.  The Chair noted that the 
Commission's goal is for the two firms to independently work out the details. 

 
11:04 a.m. Commissioner O’Brien added that both Attorneys Alejandra Montenegro and 

Preston Pugh were contracted as essential employees, largely due to their 
respective critical expertise areas for proper execution.  She stated that she 
believes they will be able to work out the mechanism in a subcontract that is not 
anticipated to increase costs.  The commissioner added that she feels the best way 
to move forward is to finalize the arrangement to include Mr. Pugh with Ms. 
Montenegro leading and finishing the monitorship. 

 
11:05 a.m. Mr. Grossman stated that the Commission might need to amend the contract with 

the monitorship to authorize the Chair as the contract manager to execute the 
amendment. 

 
11:08 a.m. With no further business, Commissioner Zuniga moved to adjourn.  

Commissioner Stebbins seconded the motion. 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Commissioner O’Brien: Aye. 
 Commissioner Zuniga: Aye. 
 Commissioner Stebbins: Aye. 
 Chair Judd-Stein:  Aye. 
 The motion passed 4-0. 
 

List of Documents and Other Items Used 
 

1. Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated August 13, 2020 
2. Draft Commission Meeting Minutes dated June 23, 2020 
3. Memorandum: Quarterly (Q2) Local Aid Payments dated August 3, 2020 
4. Memorandum: Plainridge Park Casino Relicensing Update, dated August 10, 2020 
 

/s/ Bruce Stebbins 
Secretary 

https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3665
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3832
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=3941
https://youtu.be/hrtdEQskxdU?t=4151


























































































































































 
 

 
 
 

 

TO:  Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair 
  Gayle Cameron, Commissioner 

Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner 
Bruce Stebbins, Commissioner 
Enrique Zuniga, Commissioner 

 
FROM: Loretta Lillios, Interim Director – IEB/Chief Enforcement Counsel 
 
DATE:  October 30, 2020 
 
RE:  MGM Springfield Application for Gaming Beverage License Amendment 
 
cc:  Karen Wells, Executive Director 

Derek Lennon, Chief Financial and Accounting Officer/Interim Manager – 
Licensing Division 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary of Gaming Beverage License Amendment Request 
 
 MGM Springfield (MGMS) has submitted an application for a Gaming Beverage License 
Amendment.  The application seeks to add a “Smart Bar Service Bar” near the old promotions area 
adjacent to Slot Zone 1.  This service bar, if allowed, will be used as an additional service bar for the 
cocktail service staff.  MGMS has explained that the current covid-related safety measures prohibit 
guests from walking up to a bar or to a self-service soda station.  Consequently, the cocktail service 
staff provides all drink service, and the addition of a service bar at this location is expected to 
increase productivity, reduce service round times, and promote social distancing measures amongst 
cocktail service staff.  The service bar is designed to dispense a drink when the cocktail server uses 
their swipe card and selects the correct mixed drink combination.  The service bar as proposed has a 
locking storage area in the lower half of the bar and is located behind a locked door accessible only 
via RFID keycard access.  There is surveillance coverage of the affected area.       

Conclusion & Recommendation 

Under 205 CMR 136.03, the Licensing Division is responsible for forwarding the completed 
application to the Commission (see attached application, with floorplan and photographs), with a 
recommendation regarding approval.  The Gaming Agents Division has inspected the secure nature 
of the proposed service bar: the bar itself has a locking storage are in the lower half of the bar, and 
the service bar is located behind a locked door accessible only via RFID keycard access.  In addition, 
the Gaming Agents Division has confirmed the adequacy of the surveillance coverage of the 
affected area.  The Licensing Division and the IEB recommend that the Commission approve this 
amendment request.   

 















 
 

 
 

 

 
MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

_____________________________________________________________ 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Chair Judd-Stein and Commissioners Cameron, O’Brien, Stebbins, and Zuniga  
From: Derek Lennon 
Date: 11/5/2020 
Re: Gaming Service Employee (SER) Exemption: Encore Boston Harbor   
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY 
 

The following request for a registration exemption at Encore Boston Harbor is being 
presented to the Commission for consideration and approval. The position will be employed 
by Encore Boston Harbor a Category 1 Casino Licensee. 
 

VENDOR EMPLOYEE POSITIONS 

Job Profile 
Number Position Department Property Access 

Level 

N/A Security Ambassador - Temporary Security N1 

 
The Licensing staff worked with Encore Boston Harbor in developing this recommendation 
and is in agreement with the position contained in this packet. 
 
BACKGROUND 

On November 2, 2017 Governor Baker signed a statutory amendment which granted the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission the authority to exempt certain “Gaming Service 
Employee” level job positions from the mandatory registration process.  At the January 18, 
2018 meeting, the Massachusetts Gaming Commission provided staff with a process for 
considering any potential exemptions.  Additionally, the Commission endorsed the following 
factors for consideration when making exemption determinations: 

 

 
1 Access level “N” is described as:  “No access to secure casino back-of-house without security escort.” 
 



 
 

 
 

- Work performed on the gaming floor 
- Managerial responsibilities in any department 
- Supervisory responsibilities in Human Resources, Sales and Marketing  
- Responsibilities for alcohol sales, distribution, service, and/or storage 
- Access to secure casino back-of-the house areas (including executive offices) without 

security escort 
- Responsibilities for accounting and/or finance relating to the gaming establishment 
- “Write” access to gaming-related casino databases 
- Responsibilities that potentially impact the integrity of  gaming operations, including 

access to confidential or sensitive information 

 



Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption REV 1-22-18 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL POSITIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION 
REQUIREMENT BY THE MGC 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission may exempt a job position from categorization as a gaming service 
employee.  See G.L. c. 6, § 172(o); 205 CMR 134.03(4).  

GAMING LICENSEE: 

JOB POSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE): 

JOB DESCRIPTION EFFECTIVE DATE OF JOB DESCRIPTION: 
(The Licensee shall immediately notify the Bureau of changes to any job description for an exempted position.) 

(Continue to Page 2) 



 

Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption  REV 1-22-18 

 

GAMING LICENSEE CERTIFICATION 
 
The Commission considers the following non-exhaustive list of factors when determining whether or not to 
exempt a job position.  Please indicate information about each factor for the position that has been 
identified as potentially eligible for exemption. 
 
JOB POSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE):           
 

FACTOR DESCRIPTION / EXPLANATION 

Work performed on gaming floor 

 

Managerial responsibilities in any 
department 

 

Supervisory responsibilities in Human 
Resources or Sales and Marketing 

 

Responsibilities for alcohol sales, 
distribution, service, and/or storage 

 

Access to secure casino back-of-the 
house areas (including executive offices) 
without security escort 

 

Responsibilities for accounting and/or 
finance relating to the gaming 
establishment 

 

“Write” access to gaming-related casino 
databases 

 

Responsibilities that potentially impact 
the integrity of gaming operations, 
including access to confidential or 
sensitive information 

 

Other (please set forth other relevant 
information for exemption 
consideration) 

 

 
(Continue to Page 3) 

 



 

Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption  REV 1-22-18 

 

 
JOB POSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE):           

 
 
 
The undersigned states that the information herein is true and accurate. 

 
 
      /           
 Signature /   Printed Name Date 



Position # 00010681 

Security Ambassador – Temporary 

POSITION SUMMARY 

The Encore Boston Harbor Security Ambassador will report to the Security Department. The 
Security Ambassador will be responsible for welcoming guests to Encore Boston Harbor while 
implementing certain COVID-19 required safety measures including, but not limited to, distribution 
of Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) to guests, monitoring thermal cameras, enforcement of 
social distancing guidelines as required by the Commonwealth, and maintaining all Encore 
Standards while ensuring excellent guest and team member experience.   



MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
_____________________________________________________________ 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Chair Judd-Stein and Commissioners Cameron, O’Brien, Stebbins, and Zuniga  
From: Derek Lennon 
Date: 11/5/2020 
Re: Gaming Service Employee (SER) Exemptions: Wahlburgers   
________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

The following request for five (5) registration exemptions at MGM Springfield are being 
presented to the Commission for consideration and approval. Each position will be employed 
by Wahlburgers, a licensed vendor. 

VENDOR EMPLOYEE POSITIONS 

Job Profile 
Number Position Department Property Access 

Level 

N/A Line and Prep Cook Wahlburgers N1

N/A Dishwasher Wahlburgers N1 

N/A Hostess Wahlburgers N1 

N/A Dining Room Attendant Wahlburgers N1 

N/A Cashier Wahlburgers N1 

The Licensing staff worked with Wahlburgers in developing this recommendation and is in 
agreement with the positions contained in this packet. 

BACKGROUND 

On November 2, 2017 Governor Baker signed a statutory amendment which granted the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission the authority to exempt certain “Gaming Service 

1 Access level “N” is described as:  “No access to secure casino back-of-house without security escort.” 



Employee” level job positions from the mandatory registration process.  At the January 18, 
2018 meeting, the Massachusetts Gaming Commission provided staff with a process for 
considering any potential exemptions.  Additionally, the Commission endorsed the following 
factors for consideration when making exemption determinations: 

- Work performed on the gaming floor
- Managerial responsibilities in any department
- Supervisory responsibilities in Human Resources, Sales and Marketing
- Responsibilities for alcohol sales, distribution, service, and/or storage
- Access to secure casino back-of-the house areas (including executive offices) without

security escort
- Responsibilities for accounting and/or finance relating to the gaming establishment
- “Write” access to gaming-related casino databases
- Responsibilities that potentially impact the integrity of  gaming operations, including

access to confidential or sensitive information

































 
 

 
 

 

TO: MGC Commissioners  

FROM: Joseph Delaney and Mary Thurlow  

CC: Karen Wells  

DATE: November 2, 2020  

RE: Foxborough 2019 Non-transportation Grant 
 

The towns of Foxborough, Plainville and Wrentham were approved for a Joint 2019 Non-
Transportation Grant.  Foxborough used its Reserves in the amount of $75,000 for this 
project.  These funds were used to hire a marketing consultant to prepare a strategic 
marketing plan for this region.   

The cost for the strategic plan was $47,800 leaving an unexpended balance of $27,200. 

Foxborough respectfully requests the Commission to consider allowing the balance of 
$27,200 for the development of website/brand design services highlighting the connection 
of the casino with the towns of Foxborough, Plainville and Wrentham. 

 



 
 

 
 

 

TO: 
 
Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair 
Gayle Cameron, Commissioner 
Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner 
Bruce Stebbins, Commissioner 
Enrique Zuniga, Commissioner 

 

FROM: Alexandra Lightbown, Director of Racing  

CC: Karen Wells, Executive Director 
Todd Grossman, General Counsel 

 

DATE: November 5, 2020  

RE: Application to conduct live horse racing in 2021 

 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
The Commission has received one application to conduct live horse racing in Massachusetts 
in 2021: 

• Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC (Plainridge Racecourse) to conduct 110 

days  of harness racing from April 12th  through November 26th ; 

In order to grant a racing license, the Commission must take into consideration the 
criteria provided in Chapter 128A Section 3 (i), “in addition to any other appropriate 
and pertinent factors”.  Those criteria are: 

• The financial ability of the applicant to operate a race track; 

• The maximization of state revenues; 

• The suitability of racing facilities for operation at the time of the year for which the 

dates are assigned; 

•  That large groups of spectators require safe and convenient  

facilities; 

• Having and maintaining proper physical facilities for racing meetings; 

• According fair treatment to the economic interest and investments of those who in 

good faith have provided and maintained the facilities 



 
 

 
 

In order for the Commission to determine if the criteria are met, the Commission can 
consider the application materials provided by the applicant and the testimony and 
comments received from the public. 

Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC (Plainridge Racecourse) meets the 
requirements of Chapter 128A Section 3(i) and is the only facility to apply for harness 
racing. With 110 days of live racing, they will also meet the requirements of Massachusetts 
General Laws Chapter 128C Section 2, the requirement for their ability to simulcast. 
Plainridge raced 105 days in 2015, 115 days in 2016, and 125 days in 2017, as described in 
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 23K Section 24. In 2018 they raced 110 days and in 
2019 108 days, as approved by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.  In 2020 they are 
on schedule to complete 68 days due to the delay in opening caused by the global COVID-19 
pandemic.   

Recommendation:  The Racing Division recommends the Commission approve the 
application of Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC (Plainridge Racecourse) for live 
harness horse racing in 2021, with the following condition: 

1. Plainridge will have an independent expert review the track surface prior to racing.  

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission reserves the right to ask for further 

reviews during the racing season. 

 

 

 



MASSACHUSETTS 
GAMING 
COMMISSION
COMPLIANCE OVERVIEW

NOVEMBER 5, 2020



COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES OVERVIEW

MGC engages in compliance activities 
which focus not only on our casino 
licensees but also on our own internal 
operations:
· Ensuring On-site Compliance by Casino Licensees at 

Gaming Establishments
· Compliance with Community and Commission 

Requirements
· Internal MGC Compliance Activities.

1 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION



2 |  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

Ensuring On-site Compliance by 
Casino Licensees at Gaming 

Establishments
· Gaming Agents Division
· Information Technology Services 

Division
· Finance Division
· Annual Casino Audit



3 |  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

Compliance with Community 
and Commission Requirements

· Host and Surrounding Community 
Agreements

· Section 61 findings.
· License Conditions
· RFA-2 application commitments
· Licensee capital expenditure requirements
· Quarterly and Annual reports



4 |  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

Internal MGC Compliance 
Activities

· Internal Systems
o Particularly robust given function
§ Finance/HR
§ ITS (Corporate Technology Unit)

· Internal Control Plan
· Internal Control Officer
· Designated Security Officer
· Internal Control Questionnaire
· Internal Audit/Compliance Working Group



5 |  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

Internal Testing Function
· State Auditor’s office
· Routine reporting to management
· Where resources allow, program for 

internal compliance testing


	0) Cover Page 11-5-20
	11-5-20 FINAL Commission Meeting Agenda 
	2a) 08-13-2020 Meeting Minutes (Draft)
	4b1) Gaming Supplemental Requirements
	4b2) Casino Plans
	4b3) Live Racing Supplemental Requirements
	4b4) Live Racing Track Plan
	4b5) Simulcast Guidelines Supplemental Requirements
	4b6) Simulcasting Plans
	5a1) Memo MGMS Bev Amend App
	5a2) MGMS Application
	5a3) SmartBarFloorPlan
	5a4) SmartBarPhoto1
	5a5) SmartBarPhoto2
	5b1) Encore Boston Harbor Registration Exemption Request 11.5.2020
	Encore Boston Harbor Registration Exemption Request 11.5.2020.pdf
	Security Ambassador - Temporary.pdf
	Security Ambassador - Temporary (Job Description) (002).pdf

	5b2) Wahlburgers Registration Exemption Request 11.5.2020
	7a) Foxboro Memo re website services memo 11.2
	8a) Racing license application for 2021
	9a) Compliance 11-5-20 Presentation
	MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION
	Compliance activities overview�
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6


	GAMING LICENSEE: Wynn MA, LLC
	Date of Job Description: 
	Job Description: Please see attached.
	JOB POSITION AND UNIQUE JOB CODE: Security Ambassador - Temporary (00010681)
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONWork performed on gaming floor: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONManagerial responsibilities in any department: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONSupervisory responsibilities in Human Resources or Sales and Marketing: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONResponsibilities for alcohol sales distribution service andor storage: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONAccess to secure casino backofthe house areas including executive offices without security escort: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONResponsibilities for accounting andor finance relating to the gaming establishment: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONWrite access to gamingrelated casino databases: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONResponsibilities that potentially impact the integrity of gaming operations including access to confidential or sensitive information: None.
	DESCRIPTION  EXPLANATIONOther please set forth other relevant information for exemption consideration: None.
	PRINTED NAME: Jacqui Krum
	Date: September 11, 2020


